
 

 

 

 

AGENDA 
CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION 

February 7, 2013 – 7:00 PM 

 Chairperson Ron Graves 
 Commissioners Gayle Ortiz 
  Mick Routh 
  Linda Smith 
  TJ Welch 

 
1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
2. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 
 

A. Additions and Deletions to Agenda 
 

B. Public Comments 
Short communications from the public concerning matters not on the Agenda.  
All speakers are requested to print their name on the sign-in sheet located at the podium so that their 
name may be accurately recorded in the Minutes. 

 
C. Commission Comments 

 
D. Staff Comments 

 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

A. January 17, 2013 Regular Planning Commission Meeting 
 
4. CONSENT CALENDAR 

All matters listed under “Consent Calendar” are considered by the Planning Commission to be routine and 
will be enacted by one motion in the form listed below.  There will be no separate discussion on these 
items prior to the time the Planning Commission votes on the action unless members of the public or the 
Planning Commission request specific items to be discussed for separate review.  Items pulled for 
separate discussion will be considered in the order listed on the Agenda. 

 
A. 4570 GARNET STREET         # 13-006         APN: 034-034-04 

Design Permit to remodel an existing two-story single-family house, including the 
addition of a new second-floor deck in the R-1 (Single-Family Residence) Zoning 
District. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Owner: Mark Holguin, filed: 1/10/13 
Applicant: Bryan Martin 

 
5. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

Public Hearings are intended to provide an opportunity for public discussion of each item listed as a Public 
Hearing.  The following procedure is as follows:  1) Staff Presentation; 2) Public Discussion; 3) Planning 
Commission Comments; 4) Close public portion of the Hearing; 5) Planning Commission Discussion; and 
6) Decision. 



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA – February 7, 2013  2 
  

 

 
A. 1855 41st AVENUE         #13-012         APN:  034-261-37   

Design Permit to construct a new exterior entry and façade, including a sign permit for a 
new wall sign, as part of an existing retail space at the Capitola Mall in the CC 
(Community Commercial) Zoning District. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Macerich Partnership, filed 1/18/13 
Representative: Macerich Partnership 

 
B. 718 CAPITOLA AVENUE         #12-160         APN:  036-062-11 

Design Permit and amendment to a Conditional Use Permit to allow for additional 
outdoor seating for an approved restaurant in the AR/CN (Automatic 
Review/Neighborhood Commercial) Zoning District. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Bruce Canepa 
Representative: Manuel Monjaraz, filed 3/22/11 

 
C. 504 BEULAH DRIVE         #13-004   APN:  035-141-33 

Coastal Development Permit, Architectural and Site Review and a Conditional Use 
Permit for locating a modular building (mobile home) in the MHE (Mobile Home 
Exclusive) Zoning District to be used for police storage and the code enforcement office. 
This project requires a Coastal Permit which is not appealable to the California Coastal 
Commission. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Owner: City of Capitola, filed: 1/7/13 
Representative: Frank Phanton 

 
6. DIRECTOR'S REPORT 
 
7. COMMISSION COMMUNICATIONS 
 
8. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Adjourn to the next Planning Commission on Thursday, March 7, 2013 at 7:00 PM, in the City Hall 
Council Chambers, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, California. 

 

 
APPEALS:  The following decisions of the Planning Commission can be appealed to the City Council within the 
(10) calendar days following the date of the Commission action:  Conditional Use Permit, Variance, and Coastal 
Permit.  The decision of the Planning Commission pertaining to an Architectural and Site Review can be appealed 
to the City Council within the (10) working days following the date of the Commission action.  If the tenth day falls 
on a weekend or holiday, the appeal period is extended to the next business day. 
 
All appeals must be in writing, setting forth the nature of the action and the basis upon which the action is 
considered to be in error, and addressed to the City Council in care of the City Clerk.  An appeal must be 
accompanied by a one hundred forty two dollar ($142.00) filing fee, unless the item involves a Coastal Permit that 
is appealable to the Coastal Commission, in which case there is no fee.  If you challenge a decision of the 
Planning Commission in court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the 
public hearing described in this agenda, or in written correspondence delivered to the City at, or prior to, the 
public hearing. 
 
Notice regarding Planning Commission meetings:  The Planning Commission meets regularly on the 1st 
Thursday of each month at 7:00 p.m. in the City Hall Council Chambers located at 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola. 
 
Agenda and Agenda Packet Materials:  The Planning Commission Agenda and complete Agenda Packet are 



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA – February 7, 2013  3 
  

 

available on the Internet at the City's website:  www.ci.capitola.ca.us.  Agendas are also available at the Capitola 
Branch Library, 2005 Wharf Road, Capitola, on the Monday prior to the Thursday meeting.  Need more 
information?  Contact the Community Development Department at (831) 475-7300. 
 
Agenda Materials Distributed after Distribution of the Agenda Packet:  Materials that are a public record 
under Government Code § 54957.5(A) and that relate to an agenda item of a regular meeting of the Planning 
Commission that are distributed to a majority of all the members of the Planning Commission more than 72 hours 
prior to that meeting shall be available for public inspection at City Hall located at 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, 
during normal business hours. 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act:  Disability-related aids or services are available to enable persons with a 
disability to participate in this meeting consistent with the Federal Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  
Assisted listening devices are available for individuals with hearing impairments at the meeting in the City Council 
Chambers.  Should you require special accommodations to participate in the meeting due to a disability, please 
contact the Community Development Department at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting at (831) 475-7300.  
In an effort to accommodate individuals with environmental sensitivities, attendees are requested to refrain from 
wearing perfumes and other scented products. 
 
Televised Meetings:  Planning Commission meetings are cablecast "Live" on Charter Communications Cable TV 
Channel 8 and are recorded to be replayed at 12:00 Noon on the Saturday following the meetings on Community 
Television of Santa Cruz County (Charter Channel 71 and Comcast Channel 25).  Meetings can also be viewed 
from the City's website:  www.ci.capitola.ca.us 
 

 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



 
 
 
Chairperson Graves called the Regular Meeting of the Capitola Planning Commission to order at 7:00   
p.m.     
 
1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Commissioners: Gayle Ortiz, Mick Routh, Linda Smith, TJ Welch and 
Chairperson Ron Graves 

   
2. NEW BUSINESS 
 
 A. Oath of Office – Newly Appointed Commissioner 
 
Senior Planner Bane issued the oath of office for TJ Welch. 
 
 B. Election of Chair and Vice-Chair 
 
A MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSIONER ORTIZ TO NOMINATE COMMISSIONER ROUTH                
AS THE CHAIRPERSON.  
 
THE MOTION CARRIED ON THE FOLLOWING VOTE:  AYES:  COMMISSIONERS GRAVES, 
ORTIZ, ROUTH, SMITH, AND WELCH.  NOES:  NONE.  ABSENT:  NONE.  ABSTAIN:  NONE. 
 
A MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSIONER SMITH TO NOMINATE COMMISSIONER ORTIZ                   
AS THE VICE-CHAIRPERSON. 
 
THE MOTION CARRIED ON THE FOLLOWING VOTE:  AYES:  COMMISSIONERS GRAVES, 
ORTIZ, ROUTH, SMITH, AND WELCH.  NOES:  NONE.  ABSENT:  NONE.  ABSTAIN:  NONE. 
 
 C. Committee Appointments 
 
BY CONSENSUS, THE COMMISSION MADE THE FOLLOWING COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS: 
 

a. General Plan Advisory Committee – VICE-CHAIRPERSON ORTIZ 
 
  b. Traffic and Parking Commission – CHAIRPERSON ROUTH 
 
  c. Commission on the Environment – COMMISSIONER WELCH 
 
  d. Arts and Cultural Commission – COMMISSIONER SMITH 
 
3. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

 
A. Additions and Deletions to Agenda - NONE 

 
B. Public Comments - NONE 

 

DRAFT MINUTES 
CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

THURSDAY, JANUARY 17, 2013 
7:00 P.M. – CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 
 

-1-

Item #: 3.A. 1-17-13 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – JANUARY 17, 2013  2 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2013\Draft Minutes\1-17-13 DRAFT Minutes.doc 

C. Commission Comments 
 

Commissioner Graves apologized for any comments he may have made that were embarrassing to 
the city. 
 

D. Staff Comments - NONE 
 
4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

A. December 6, 2012 Regular Planning Commission Meeting 
 
A MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSIONER GRAVES AND SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER 
ORTIZ TO APPROVE THE DECEMBER 6, 2012 MEETING MINUTES. 
 
THE MOTION CARRIED ON THE FOLLOWING VOTE:  AYES:  COMMISSIONERS GRAVES, 
ORTIZ, SMITH, AND CHAIRPERSON ROUTH.  NOES:  NONE.  ABSENT:  NONE.  ABSTAIN:  
COMMISSIONER WELCH. 
 
5. CONSENT CALENDAR 

 
A.  723 EL SALTO DRIVE  #10-092TX   APN: 036-143-35 

Request for a one-year extension to a previously approved Minor Land Division to 
convert four apartment units to condominiums in the VS/R-1 (Visitor Serving/Single-
Family Residence) Zoning District.  
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 

 
Commissioner Graves did not support the time extension.  He stated that the applicant should have 
been able to complete the approved project within the two year approval period. 
 
A MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSIONER SMITH AND SECONDED BY COMMISSIONSER 
ORTIZ TO APPROVE PROJECT APPLICATION #10-092TX WITH THE FOLLOWING FINDING: 
 
A. A substantial change of circumstances has not occurred since Planning Commission 

approval of the permit on January 20, 2011. An additional one-year extension of the 
permit to January 20, 2014, would not be detrimental to the purpose of the certified 
local coastal program and zoning ordinance. 

 
The Planning Commission finds that neither the physical characteristics of the lot nor the 
zoning ordinance has changed since approval of the permit on January 20, 2011. Therefore, a 
one-year extension (to January 20, 2014) of said permit is appropriate. 

 
THE MOTION CARRIED ON THE FOLLOWING VOTE:  AYES:  COMMISSIONERS ORTIZ, SMITH, 
WELCH AND CHAIRPERSON ROUTH.  NOES:  GRAVES.  ABSENT:  NONE.  ABSTAIN:  NONE. 
 
6.  PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
A.  1900 41ST AVENUE                             #12-155                             APN 034-201-10 

Amendment to an existing restaurant Conditional Use Permit (Capitola Diner) to 
incorporate a bar use and allow live entertainment in the CC (Community 
Commercial) Zoning District. 

 Environmental Determination:  Categorical Exemption 
 Property Owner:  R. Deane, filed: 11/21/12 

Representative:  Pedro Salazar 

-2-

Item #: 3.A. 1-17-13 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – JANUARY 17, 2013  3 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2013\Draft Minutes\1-17-13 DRAFT Minutes.doc 

 
Senior Planner Bane presented the staff report. 
 
Commissioner Ortiz inquired if the current use permit allows a bar and what are the current hours of 
operation. 
 
Senior Planner Bane responded that the current use permit allows a bar.  Currently the business 
closes at 10:00 p.m.  The applicant is requesting to extend the closing to 12 midnight. 
 
General Plan Consultant Susan Westman stated that due to the location of the business parking lot 
adjacent to a residential neighborhood, staff supports allowing the business to close at midnight on 
Friday and Saturday nights only. 
 
Commissioner Ortiz inquired if there are tables specifically for food and alcohol service or can a guest 
have food and alcohol at all the tables. 
 
Chairperson Routh inquired if the Planning Commission approves the amended use permit, can the 
Police Department deny the Entertainment Permit? 
 
General Plan Consultant Susan Westman confirmed that the Police Department may deny the 
Entertainment Permit. 
 
The public hearing was opened. 
 
Pedro Salazar, business owner, spoke with an interpreter, in support of the application.  He stated 
that the tables near the bar are primarily used for alcohol service.  A guest may sit at any table and 
order alcohol without food. 
 
Commissioner Smith noted that this business has repeatedly stayed open beyond the approved hours 
of operation.  She asked the applicant to address the various incidents noted in the Police Chief's 
letter. 
 
Mr. Salazar stated there have been employee and private parties after the business has closed. 
   
The public hearing was closed. 
 
Commissioner Ortiz was not supportive of going against the Police Chief's recommendation.  The use 
permit application is predominately a bar use.  And recent police incidents do not present a positive 
history of the management for this use. 
 
Commissioner Welch stated he could support the application if the business management met the use 
permit conditions and entertainment permit requirements. Revocations of the use and entertainment 
permit are the purview of the Planning Commission and the Police Chief. 
 
Commissioner Graves stated that there are other establishments in the vicinity that serve alcohol.  He 
supported the application with the conditions.  He commented that the use in located in the main 
commercial district and this should be an opportunity to keep a business open and boost the 
economy. 
 
Commissioner Smith concurred with both Commissioner Ortiz and Graves' comments.  She stated 
that the business management has violated the established rules and suggested a one year trial 
period with entertainment, limited hours until 10:00 p.m., and no complaints are received or police 
activity has occurred.  Then consider extending hours to 12 midnight after a one year review. 

-3-

Item #: 3.A. 1-17-13 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – JANUARY 17, 2013  4 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2013\Draft Minutes\1-17-13 DRAFT Minutes.doc 

Chairperson Routh stated his concerns about repeated violations and police activity at the business.  
He supported Commissioner Smith's suggestion of a trial period for the business management to 
show a lawful track record, at least through the summer. 
 
Commissioner Ortiz clarified that a DJ will provide entertainment, not live entertainment. 
 
Commissioner Welch supported a DJ. 
 
Police Chief Rudy Escalante stated that in addition to obtaining an entertainment permit, the business 
owner must also apply to the ABC to modify the existing ABC permit.  The current ABC permit does 
not permit live entertainment.  The sale of alcohol shall end at 10:00 p.m. and the business must be 
an eating establishment, not a bar. 
 
Commissioner Smith suggested an added condition that the premises be vacated at the end of 
operating hours. 
  
Commissioner Graves stated that vacating the premises at the end of business hours would be 
infeasible since most food establishments keep staff working beyond closing hours to clean up and 
get ready for the next business day. 
 
Commissioner Ortiz supported Commissioner Smith's and Chairperson Routh's suggestion of trial 
period until the summer for the business management to prove a track record of legal activity before 
allowing extended hours of operation and entertainment. 
 
General Plan Consultant Susan Westman suggested the Commission continue the application to the 
September 5, 2013 Planning Commission meeting. 
 
A MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSIONER ORTIZ AND SECONDED BY COMMISSIONSER 
GRAVES TO CONTINUE PROJECT APPLICATION #12-155 UNTIL SEPTEMBER 5, 2013. 
 
THE MOTION CARRIED ON THE FOLLOWING VOTE:  AYES:  COMMISSIONERS GRAVES, 
ORTIZ, SMITH, WELCH AND CHAIRPERSON ROUTH.  NOES:  NONE.  ABSENT:  NONE.  
ABSTAIN:  NONE. 
 

B.  3555 CLARES STREET, SUITE G            #12-159                             APN 034-261-56 
Amendment to an existing restaurant Conditional Use Permit (Crown Cafe) to allow 
an outdoor barbeque in the CC (Community Commercial) Zoning District. 

 Environmental Determination:  Categorical Exemption 
 Property Owner:  Bob Rivers, Brown Ranch Properties, filed: 12/13/12 

Representative:  Ron Clements, Jr. 
 

Senior Planner Bane presented the staff report. 
 
Chairperson Routh inquired about the barbeque hours of operation and problems with smoke. 
 
The public hearing was opened. 
 
Ron Clements, Jr., business owner, stated that the barbeque hours are approximately 9:00 a.m. to 
4:30 p.m.  The barbeque is to provide food for service in the deli.  There is no food served at the 
barbeque location.  He stated that smoke has not been an issue and he is willing to address any 
issues of smoke that may affect neighboring businesses. 
 
Commissioner Smith asked how the barbeque was started and if it is kept lit all day. 

-4-

Item #: 3.A. 1-17-13 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – JANUARY 17, 2013  5 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2013\Draft Minutes\1-17-13 DRAFT Minutes.doc 

Mr. Clements stated that lighter fluid is used to start the fire, but wood is added throughout the day to 
keep the coals hot.   One employee attends the barbeque all day. 
 
The public hearing was closed. 
 
Commissioner Welch stated the use is a clean operation and the smoke does not affect the 
neighboring businesses. 
 
Commissioner Smith stated that smoke from a barbeque at a restaurant in the Village created a 
negative impact on adjacent businesses and residents.  She did not find the subject barbeque to be a 
problem, but requested an additional finding that the location of the barbeque is an acceptable 
distance from adjacent businesses and would not affect residences in the vicinity. 
 
Commissioner Graves stated that other barbeque applications should be reviewed on a case by case 
basis to determine if the location is acceptable. 
 
Chairperson Routh stated that he was confident that any problems with the barbeque would be dealt 
with in a timely and thorough manner. 
 
Commissioner Ortiz stated that the barbeque brings character to a corporate environment and 
supported the application. 
 
A MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSIONER GRAVES AND SECONDED BY COMMISSIONSER 
ORTIZ TO APPROVE PROJECT APPLICATION #12-159 WITH THE FOLLOWING FINDING: 
 
CONDITIONS 
 
1. The project approval consists of an amendment to an existing restaurant (Crown Café Deli & 

Catering) Conditional Use Permit to allow the installation of an outdoor barbeque at 3555 Clares 
Street within the Brown Ranch Marketplace. 
 

2. The barbeque shall be used for food preparation only.  No food shall be served from the barbeque 
location. 

 
3. The barbeque area shall be kept clean and orderly. 

 
4. Any significant modifications to the size or exterior appearance of the barbeque area must be 

approved by the Planning Commission.  Similarly, any significant change to the use itself, or the 
site, must be approved by the Planning Commission. 

 
5. The application shall be reviewed by the Planning Commission upon evidence of non-compliance 

with conditions of approval or applicable municipal code provisions. 
 

FINDINGS 
 
A. The application, subject to the conditions imposed, will secure the purposes of the 

Zoning Ordinance and General Plan. 
 

Community Development Staff and the Planning Commission have reviewed the project and 
determined that the proposed use is permitted in the CC (Community Commercial) Zoning 
District with a Conditional Use Permit.  Conditions of approval have been included to carry out 
the objectives of the Zoning Ordinance and General Plan. 

 

-5-

Item #: 3.A. 1-17-13 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – JANUARY 17, 2013  6 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2013\Draft Minutes\1-17-13 DRAFT Minutes.doc 

B. The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood.   
 

Community Development Staff and the Planning Commission have reviewed the project and 
determined that the addition of the outdoor barbeque will not have a negative impact on the 
character and integrity of the commercial area as it is an acceptable distance from the 
adjacent businesses, and there are no two-story structure or residences nearby.  Conditions of 
approval have been included to ensure that the project maintains the character and integrity of 
the area. 

 
C. This project is categorically exempt under Section 15301 of the California 

Environmental Quality Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations. 

 
The proposed project involves an amendment to an existing use permit with no expansion of 
use beyond what has currently existed.  No adverse environmental impacts were discovered 
during project review by either the Planning Department Staff or the Planning Commission. 

 
THE MOTION CARRIED ON THE FOLLOWING VOTE:  AYES:  COMMISSIONERS GRAVES, 
ORTIZ, SMITH, WELCH AND CHAIRPERSON ROUTH.  NOES:  NONE.  ABSENT:  NONE.  A. 
  
6. DIRECTOR'S REPORT 
 
General Plan Consultant Susan Westman requested direction from the Commission regarding 
potential fencing for the new homes at Capitola Avenue and Hill Street.  Previously the project was 
approved with a retaining wall and no fencing.  However there is an empty dirt area between the 
retaining wall and open rear yard area which is not landscaped.  The property owners are seeking a 
solution to the fencing.  Ms. Westman suggested the applicants submit a landscaping plan for the dirt 
area and a five foot fence with one foot of trellis to provide privacy and sound reduction.   
 
Commissioner Ortiz clarified that the fence would be separated from the wall by the landscaped area.  
She inquired how the landscaped area would be irrigated. 
 
General Plan Consultant Susan Westman suggested that the fencing be consistent along the Capitola 
Avenue frontage and that landscaping bond or maintenance agreement could be utilized to ensure the 
landscaping was sufficiently maintained by the property owners. 
 
By consensus, the Commission supported staff's recommendation of a landscaped area and a fence 
along the Capitola Avenue frontage. 
 
General Plan Consultant Susan Westman gave a Power Point presentation on the update of the new 
zoning ordinance as presented to the City Council on January 10, 2013.  She announced that the city 
has begun the recruitment for a new Community Development Director. 
 
8. COMMISSION COMMUNICATIONS 
 
Commissioner Ortiz requested water use and irrigation rules from both water districts be distributed to 
Commission. 
 
General Plan Consultant Susan Westman stated that the new zoning ordinance will include a water 
conservation ordinance. 
 

-6-

Item #: 3.A. 1-17-13 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – JANUARY 17, 2013  7 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2013\Draft Minutes\1-17-13 DRAFT Minutes.doc 

9. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The Planning Commission adjourned the meeting at 8:20 p.m. to a Regular Meeting of the Planning 
Commission to be held on Thursday, February 7, 2013 at 7:00 p.m., in the City Hall Council 
Chambers, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, California. 
 
Approved by the Planning Commission on February 7, 2013 
 
 
________________________________ 
       Danielle Uharriet, Minute Clerk 

-7-

Item #: 3.A. 1-17-13 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-8-



 
 

S T A F F   R E P O R T 
 

TO:  PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
FROM:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  DEPARTMENT 
 
DATE:  FEBRUARY 7, 2013 
 
SUBJECT: 4570 GARNET STREET    # 13-006  APN:  034-034-04 

Design Permit to remodel an existing two-story single-family house, including the 
addition of a new second-floor deck in the R-1 (Single-Family Residence) Zoning 
District. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Owner:  Mark Holguin 
Applicant:  Bryan Martin 

 
APPLICANT’S PROPOSAL 
 
The applicant is proposing to remodel an existing two-story single-family house, including a 102 
square foot addition and a 77 square foot second floor deck area at 4570 Garnet Street in the 
R-1 (Single Family Residence) zoning district. The use is consistent with the General Plan, 
Zoning Ordinance and Local Coastal Plan. 
 
 
 
 

STRUCTURAL DATA 
 

SETBACKS Required Existing Proposed 
Front Yard     

     
 1st Story 15’ 19’-8” 19’-8” 
 2nd Story 20’ 51’-6” 45’-6” 

Rear Yard     
 1st Story 16’ 12’-6” 12’-6” 
 2nd Story 16’ 12’-6” 12’-6” 

Side Yard     
 1st Story 4’ 5’ (l) & 5’ (r) 5’ (l) & 5’ (r) 

 2nd Story 6’ 5’ (l) & 6’ (r) 5’ (l) & 6’ (r) 

     
MAX HEIGHT  25’ 19’ 20’-6” 
     
FLOOR AREA RATIO Lot Size MAX (57%) Existing (47%) Proposed (50%) 
     
  3,200 sq. ft   1,824 sq. ft. 1,499 sq. ft 1,594 sq. ft. 

-9-

Item #: 4.A. 4570 Garnet staff report.pdf



PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA REPORT:  February 7, 2013     4570 Garnet Street  
 

 

 

 Habitable Space Second Floor 
Deck 

Garage Total 

Existing First Story 1,211 sq. ft. n/a 0 sq. ft. 1,211 sq. ft. 

Existing Second Story 288 sq. ft. 0 sq. ft. n/a 288 sq. ft. 

Proposed TOTAL  1,499 sq. ft. 0 sq. ft. 0 sq. ft. 1,499 sq. ft. 

 

 Habitable Space Second Floor 
Deck 

Garage Total 

Proposed First Story 1,178 sq. ft. n/a 0 sq. ft. 1,178 sq. ft. 

Proposed Second Story 339 sq. ft. 77 sq. ft. n/a 416 sq. ft. 

Proposed TOTAL  1,517. ft. 77 sq. ft. 0 sq. ft. 1,594 sq. ft. 
 
PARKING Required Existing Proposed 
 2 spaces, one of which 

must be covered 
1 uncovered 1 uncovered 

Total 2 spaces 1 space 1 space 
   
BACKGROUND 
 
On January 23, 2013, the Architectural and Site Review Committee reviewed the application.   
 

• Public Works Director Steve Jesberg discussed conditions of approval that should be 
added to the project, including the replacement of sidewalk if damaged during 
construction, and providing a drainage plan as part of the building permit submittal. 

• City Architect Derek Van Alstine explained that he understood the difficulty with 
improving the existing structure, and that he liked what they were proposing. 

• City Landscape Architect Susan Suddjian liked the improvements, but requested 
additional details for the landscape plan, specifically identifying plants proposed as part 
of the plan. 

• Senior Planner Bane requested construction costs to document that the project would 
not exceed the limitations required for improvement to a nonconforming structure, and a 
color and materials board.   

 
The applicant has since provided calculations that show it is not exceeding the 80% 
improvement value limitation, as well as a color and materials board that will be available at the 
Planning Commission meeting. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The subject property is a typical 3,200 square foot lot in the Jewel Box single-family 
neighborhood.  The existing 1,499 square foot two-story house is proposed to be remodeled, 
including both interior and exterior changes.  The following is a summary of the proposed 
improvements: 
 

• New interior layout; 

• Removal of the exterior staircase, incorporating a new interior stair to connect the first 
and second floor levels; 

• A 102 square foot first and second floor addition in place of the existing exterior 
staircase; 

-10-

Item #: 4.A. 4570 Garnet staff report.pdf



PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA REPORT:  February 7, 2013     4570 Garnet Street  
 

 

 

• A new 77 square foot second floor deck over the existing roof area; 

• Raising the existing roof systems approximately 18”; 

• Relocation of the front entry with the addition of a new covered entry porch; 

• New exterior finishes, including color coated plaster, horizontal wood siding, brushed 
nickel fascia, covered shade elements, and new aluminum windows and doors. 

 
These improvements will bring the awkward, outdated structure a more contemporary look, as 
well as connect the first and second floors internally.  A preliminary landscape plan has been 
included in the plan set which includes new hardscape as well as plantings.  Existing curb, 
gutter and sidewalk are proposed to remain.  However, a condition has been added that 
requires that any curb, gutter and sidewalk that is currently deteriorated or is damaged during 
construction shall be repaired or replaced. 
 
Nonconforming 
The structure is legal nonconforming due to not meeting current second floor side and rear 
setbacks, as well as off-street parking requirements.  Normally two off-street parking spaces are 
required for a house of this size.  However, only one driveway space is provided at this time.  
Code Section 17.15.130(E) states that “No additional square footage which exceeds ten percent 
of the existing gross floor area may be added to an existing single-family residence, unless 
minimum parking requirements are met.”  For this project, the 1,499 square foot house would 
allow up to a 149 square foot addition before two off-street parking spaces would be required.  
The applicant is proposing a 102 square foot addition; therefore additional parking is not 
required to be provided. 
 
Per 17.72.070, structural alterations to nonconforming structures are limited to 80% of the 
present fair market value of the structure.  The applicant has provided a construction cost 
breakdown (Attachment B) that demonstrates how the proposed project will not exceed 80% of 
the present fair market value of the structure.  The Building Official has reviewed the 
calculations and determined them to be accurate.  It should be noted that all new additions to 
the structure meet the current R-1 district development standards. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission approve application #13-006, subject to the 
following conditions and based upon the following findings: 
 
CONDITIONS 
 
1.  The project approval consists of a remodel to an existing two-story single-family residence at 

4570 Garnet Street in the R-1 (Single Family Residence) zoning district. 
 
2.  Any significant modifications to the size or exterior appearance of the structure must be 

approved by the Planning Commission. 
 
3.  Hours of construction shall be Monday to Friday 7:30 a.m. – 9:00 p.m., and Saturday 9:00 

a.m. – 4:00 p.m., per city ordinance. 
 
4.  If the existing curb, gutter and sidewalk are damaged during construction, they shall be 

replaced to the satisfaction of the Public Works Director. 
 

5.  An encroachment permit shall be acquired for any work performed in the right-of-way. 

-11-

Item #: 4.A. 4570 Garnet staff report.pdf



PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA REPORT:  February 7, 2013     4570 Garnet Street  
 

 

 

 
6.  A drainage plan or design shall be submitted with the final building plans, to the satisfaction 

of the Public Works Director. 
 
7.  The final landscape plan shall be submitted with the building permit application and will 

include the specific number of plants of each type and their size, as well as the irrigation 
system to be utilized. Front yard landscaping shall be installed prior to final building 
occupancy. 

 
8.  Prior to granting of final occupancy, compliance with all conditions of approval shall be 

demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Zoning Administrator or Community Development 
Director. 

 
FINDINGS 
 
A.  The application, subject to the conditions imposed, will secure the purposes of 

the Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan. 
 
 Planning Department Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and the 

Planning Commission have all reviewed the project.  The project generally conforms to 
the development standards of the R-1 (Single Family Residence) Zoning District.  
Conditions of approval have been included to carry out the objectives of the Zoning 
Ordinance, General Plan and Local Coastal Plan. 

 
B.  The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood. 
 
 Planning Department Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and the 

Planning Commission have all reviewed the project.  The project generally conforms to 
the development standards of the R-1 (Single Family Residence) Zoning District.  
Conditions of approval have been included to ensure that the project maintains the 
character and integrity of the neighborhood. 

 
C. This project is categorically exempt under Section 15301 of the California 

Environmental Quality Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations. 

 
 This project involves the remodel of an existing single-family residence in the R-1 (single 

family residence) Zoning District.  Section 15301 of the CEQA Guidelines exempts 
alterations to existing single-family residences in a residential zone.   

 
ATTACHMENTS 

A.  Project Plans 
B.  Construction Cost Breakdown 

 
Report Prepared By:  Ryan Bane 
    Senior Planner                    
 
 
 
 
 
P:\Planning Commission\2013 Meeting Packets\2-7-13\Word\4570 Garnet staff report.docx 

-12-

Item #: 4.A. 4570 Garnet staff report.pdf



-13-

Item #: 4.A. Attachment_A.pdf



-14-

Item #: 4.A. Attachment_A.pdf



-15-

Item #: 4.A. Attachment_A.pdf



-16-

Item #: 4.A. Attachment_A.pdf



-17-

Item #: 4.A. Attachment_A.pdf



-18-

Item #: 4.A. Attachment_A.pdf



-19-

Item #: 4.A. Attachment_A.pdf



-20-

Item #: 4.A. Attachment_A.pdf



-21-

Item #: 4.A. Attachment_A.pdf



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-22-



-23-

Item #: 4.A. Attachment_B.pdf



-24-

Item #: 4.A. Attachment_B.pdf



-25-

Item #: 4.A. Attachment_B.pdf



-26-

Item #: 4.A. Attachment_B.pdf



-27-

Item #: 4.A. Attachment_B.pdf



-28-

Item #: 4.A. Attachment_B.pdf



-29-

Item #: 4.A. Attachment_B.pdf



-30-

Item #: 4.A. Attachment_B.pdf



-31-

Item #: 4.A. Attachment_B.pdf



-32-

Item #: 4.A. Attachment_B.pdf



-33-

Item #: 4.A. Attachment_B.pdf



-34-

Item #: 4.A. Attachment_B.pdf



-35-

Item #: 4.A. Attachment_B.pdf



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-36-



 
 

S T A F F   R E P O R T 
 

TO:  PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
FROM:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  DEPARTMENT 
 
DATE:  FEBRUARY 7, 2013 
 
SUBJECT: 1855 41st AVENUE   #13-012  APN: 034-261-37 

Design Permit to construct a new exterior entry and façade, including a sign 
permit for a new wall sign, as part of an existing retail space at the Capitola Mall 
in the CC (Community Commercial) Zoning District. 
Environmental Determination:  Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner:  Macerich Partnership, filed 1/18/13 
Representative:  Macerich Partnership 

 
APPLICANT’S PROPOSAL 
 
The applicant is proposing to develop a new exterior entry for retail space at the Capitola Mall, 
including a new wall sign and landscape improvements.  The façade changes are part of an 
overall tenant improvement for Ulta Beauty, a retail beauty supply store.  The mall is located at 
1855 41st Avenue in the CC (Community Commercial) zoning district.  No additional square 
footage or change of use is proposed.  The use is consistent with the General Plan and Zoning 
Ordinance. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
On January 23, 2013, the Architectural and Site Review Committee reviewed the current 
application.   
 

• Building Official Mark Wheeler indicated that ADA accessibility would need to be 
addressed as part of the building permit submittal. 

• Public Works Director Steve Jesberg stated that he needed more clear plans to show 
what is being proposed, and that with the removal of trees that replacement trees will be 
required. 

• Senior Planner Bane requested additional plans, including elevations, details on the 
colors and materials, landscaping, and lighting. 

• City Architect Derek Van Alstine expressed that it was great improvement, and that he 
was happy to see what has been an ugly wall area be replaced with a new exterior that 
will bring the life of the mall to the exterior.  He also requested additional details 
regarding the elevations, materials, etc. 

• City Landscape Architect Susan Suddjian liked the improvements, but requested 
additional details for the landscape plan, specifically identifying plants and the seat wall 
height proposed as part of the plan. 

 
The applicant has since provided the additional information. 

-37-

Item #: 5.A. 1855 41st Avenue staff report.pdf



PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA REPORT:  February 7, 2013     1855 41
st
 Avenue - Ulta Facade  

 

 

 

DISCUSSION 
 
The project involves exterior improvements to the existing mall by way of creating a new exterior 
façade and entry for a new retail tenant (Ulta Beauty).  The area of improvement is located on 
the east side of the mall facing 41st Avenue, adjacent to the main mall entrance driveway.  The 
existing area consists of a blank exterior wall, landscape planter screening a service yard for 
trash, recycling, and an electrical transformer, as well as a sidewalk with lighting and mature 
trees.   
 
The improvements to the area would consist of the following: 

• Opening the blank wall of the exterior of the mall to incorporate a new retail storefront; 

• Removal of the existing landscape planter screen and reconfiguring of the area to 
incorporate the new retail storefront and still maintain a screened, enclosed service yard 
for storing trash, recycling, and the electrical transformer; 

• A new 9’ cmu wall to screen the new enclosed service yard and electrical transformer; 

• Removal of eight trees; 

• New raised planters with seating walls with all new landscaping; 

• New lighting; and 

• New wall sign 
 
The new storefront façade will include a new decorative cornice, smooth cement plaster finish, 
cultured stone base, aluminum window and door entry, a distinct orange awning, and wall 
sconces.  Leading up to the entry is a new concrete walkway, bordered by new raised planters, 
and new light poles.  A rendering has been provided by the applicant (Attachment D), however it 
should be noted that revisions to the project have occurred since the rendering was submitted, 
and therefore it is not completely accurate.  While the building façade changes should remain 
the same, some of the landscaping planters have changed.  The site plan should be referred to 
for the most accurate representation of the project (Attachment A). 
 
Included in the removal of the landscape planter area are six trees, in addition to two sidewalk 
trees that will be removed in front of the proposed entry.  With a total of eight trees proposed for 
removal, sixteen replacement trees are proposed to be planted throughout the mall property.  A 
site plan showing the locations of the replacement trees has been submitted (Attachment A).  A 
more detailed landscape plan for the new planters will be available at the Planning Commission 
meeting. 
 
Signage 
The Sign Ordinance requires that the size of wall signs be no greater than one square foot of 
sign area for each foot of linear business frontage.  With approximately 82 feet of business 
frontage, the 80 square foot “Ulta Beauty” sign facing 41st Avenue falls within the permitted sign 
area.  The signs will consist of individual reverse channel halo lit letters, 3” deep, attached to the 
stucco wall. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The new retail façade eliminates an unattractive “dead” zone and creates an attractive, 
welcoming storefront entrance to the exterior of the mall.  Staff recommends that the Planning 
Commission approve application #13-012, subject to the following conditions and based upon 
the following findings: 
 

-38-

Item #: 5.A. 1855 41st Avenue staff report.pdf



PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA REPORT:  February 7, 2013     1855 41
st
 Avenue - Ulta Facade  

 

 

 

CONDITIONS 
 
1.  The project consists of a new exterior entry for retail space at the Capitola Mall, including a 

new wall sign and landscape improvements.  The façade changes are part of an overall 
tenant improvement for Ulta Beauty, a retail beauty supply store.  The mall is located at 
1855 41st Avenue in the CC (Community Commercial) zoning district.  No additional square 
footage or change of use is proposed. 

 
2.  Any significant modifications to the proposed plan must be approved by the Planning 

Commission.  Similarly, any significant change to the use itself, or the site, must be 
approved by the Planning Commission. 

 
3.  The application shall be reviewed by the Planning Commission upon evidence of non-

compliance with conditions of approval or applicable municipal code provisions. 
 

4.  The final landscape plan submitted with the building permit application shall include the 
specific number of plants of each type and their size, as well as the irrigation system to be 
utilized. 

 
5.  All landscaping must be maintained and non-maintenance will be a basis for review by the 

Planning Commission. 
 
6.  Prior to granting of final occupancy, compliance with all conditions of approval shall be 

demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Zoning Administrator or Community Development 
Director. 

 
FINDINGS 
 
A.  The application, subject to the conditions imposed, will secure the purposes of 

the Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan. 
 

Community Development Department Staff, the Architectural and Site Review 
Committee, and the Planning Commission have all reviewed the project.  The project 
conforms to the development standards of the CC (Community Commercial) Zoning 
District and the 41st Avenue Design Guidelines. Conditions of approval have been 
included to carry out the objectives of the Zoning Ordinance and General Plan. 

 
B. The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood. 
 

 Planning Department Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and the 
Planning Commission have all reviewed the project.  The project conforms to the 
development standards of the CC (Community Commercial) Zoning District and the 41st 
Avenue Design Guidelines.  Conditions of approval have been included to ensure that 
the project maintains the character and integrity of the area. 

 
C. This project is categorically exempt under Section 15301(e)(2) of the California 

Environmental Quality Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations. 

 

-39-

Item #: 5.A. 1855 41st Avenue staff report.pdf



PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA REPORT:  February 7, 2013     1855 41
st
 Avenue - Ulta Facade  

 

 

 

 Section 15301(e)(2) of the CEQA Guidelines exempts interior or exterior alterations to 
existing structures.  No adverse environmental impacts were discovered during review of 
the proposed project.   
 

ATTACHMENTS 
A.  Project Plans (Site Plan, Elevations, Package including photo of existing area, 

conceptual mall entrance rendering including the propose façade, and mall map 
indicating tree replacement locations 

B.  Ulta awning plan detail 
C.  Ulta sign plans 
D.  Storefront rendering 

 
 
Report Prepared By:  Ryan Bane 
    Senior Planner                   
     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P:\Planning Commission\2013 Meeting Packets\2-7-13\Word\1855 41st Ave Ulta facade 2-7-13 PC.docx 

-40-

Item #: 5.A. 1855 41st Avenue staff report.pdf



-41-

Item #: 5.A. Attachment_A.pdf



-42-

Item #: 5.A. Attachment_A.pdf



-43-

Item #: 5.A. Attachment_A.pdf



-44-

Item
 #: 5.A

. A
ttach

m
en

t_A
.p

d
f



-45-

Item
 #: 5.A

. A
ttach

m
en

t_A
.p

d
f



-46-

Item
 #: 5.A

. A
ttach

m
en

t_A
.p

d
f



-47-

Item
 #: 5.A

. A
ttach

m
en

t_A
.p

d
f



-48-

Item
 #: 5.A

. A
ttach

m
en

t_A
.p

d
f



-49-

Item #: 5.A. Attachment_B.pdf



-50-

Item #: 5.A. Attachment_B.pdf



-51-

Item #: 5.A. Attachment_C.pdf



-52-

Item #: 5.A. Attachment_C.pdf



-53-

Item #: 5.A. Attachment_C.pdf



-54-

Item #: 5.A. Attachment_C.pdf



-55-

Item #: 5.A. Attachment_C.pdf



-56-

Item #: 5.A. Attachment_C.pdf



-57-

Item #: 5.A. Attachment_D.pdf



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-58-



 
 

S T A F F   R E P O R T 
 

TO:  PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
FROM:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  DEPARTMENT 
 
DATE:  FEBRUARY 7, 2013 
 
SUBJECT: 718 CAPITOLA AVENUE  #12-160  APN:  036-062-11 

Design Permit and amendment to a Conditional Use Permit to allow for additional 
outdoor seating for an approved restaurant in the AR/CN (Automatic 
Review/Neighborhood Commercial) Zoning District. 
Environmental Determination:  Categorical Exemption 

  Property Owner:  Bruce Canepa 
  Representative:  Manuel Monjaraz, filed 3/22/11 

 
APPLICANT’S PROPOSAL 
 
The applicant is requesting an amendment to a previously approved take-out restaurant that is 
currently under construction at 718 Capitola Avenue in the AR/CN (Automatic 
Review/Neighborhood Commercial) Zoning District.  The amendments include changing the use 
from a “take-out restaurant” to a standard “restaurant”, thereby eliminating the six seat limitation, 
as well as expanding the outdoor seating area.  The use is consistent with the General Plan and 
Zoning Ordinance with the issuance of a Conditional Use Permit. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Planning Commission approved a Conditional Use Permit to allow a take-out restaurant 
with outdoor seating at this location on September 2, 2010.  On April 7, 2011 the applicant 
returned to the Planning Commission to receive approvals to construct a 5’x19’ addition to the 
rear of the building, as well as gain approval to allow the sale of beer on the premises. 
 
On January 23, 2013, the Architectural and Site Review Committee reviewed the current 
application.   
 

• Public Works Director Steve Jesberg stated that the existing driveway approach would 
be required to be replaced with a standard curb. 

• Senior Planner Bane requested additional details regarding the fence and palapa, 
including the height, material, color, etc.  

• City Architect Derek Van Alstine also requested additional details regarding the fence 
and palapa, including the height, material, color, etc.  He supported the project overall. 

• City Landscape Architect Susan Suddjian liked the improvements, but requested 
additional details for the landscape plan, specifically identifying plants proposed as part 
of the plan. 

 
The applicant has since provided additional information regarding the fence, palapa and 
landscaping. 

-59-

Item #: 5.B. 718 Capitola Avenue staff report.pdf



PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA REPORT:  February 7, 2013     718 Capitola Avenue  
 

 

 

DISCUSSION 
 
The existing Conditional Use Permit allows for the following: 

• Take-out restaurant limited to no more than six seats; 

• Outdoor seating limited to a small area toward the rear of the restaurant building; 

• A 95 square foot addition to the original commercial building; and 

• The sale of beer and wine on the premises; 
 
The applicant is now requesting additional improvements to the restaurant use, including: 

• Changing the use from a “take-out restaurant” to a standard “restaurant”, thereby 
eliminating the six seat limitation; 

• Expanding the outdoor seating area by improving an adjacent area that had previously 
been two parking spaces.  The seating area will be improved with a concrete slab, a 
large permanent umbrella (palapa), and enclosed with a 3’ high fence; 

• New landscaping, including a 7’ water fountain; and 

• Parking space restriping to include a handicap space and walkway access. 
 
In order to change the use from a “take-out restaurant” to a standard “restaurant” with no seat 
limitation, there must be sufficient parking to accommodate the additional parking requirement.  
A “take-out restaurant” requires one parking space for each 240 square feet of gross floor area 
(including outdoor seating), while a standard “restaurant” requires one parking space for each 
60 square feet of gross floor area (including outdoor seating).   
 

Use Square Feet Parking Requirement Spaces Required 
Office 3,600 1 space/ 240 square feet 15 
Auto Detailing 810 1 space/ 240 square feet 3 
Residential Apartment n/a 2 spaces/unit 2 
Restaurant (including 
outdoor seating) 

728 1 space/ 60 square feet 12 

TOTAL 32 

 
The existing commercial site currently contains 45 off-street parking spaces.  With only 32 
parking spaces required pursuant to the Zoning Code, changing the use to a standard 
“restaurant” would be permitted. 
 
The outdoor seating area is approximately 18’x20’, in addition to a 5’ walkway that provides 
direct access from the parking area.  The concrete has been stained an attractive terracotta 
color with matching 6” curbs to enclose the proposed landscape areas.  A permanent 14’ 
diameter “Palapa” (Attachment B) is proposed for the patio area to provide shading.  The palapa 
is approximately 12’ in height and is made of a pre-woven thatch to give a tropical feel.  A 3’ 
wrought iron fence is proposed along the edge of the seating area to separate it from the public 
sidewalk, and all new landscaping is proposed around the seating area, including a water 
fountain.  The landscaping consists of queen palms, elephant ear plants, and bromeliad 
(Attachment C), to add to the tropical theme. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission approve application #12-160, subject to the 
following conditions and based upon the following findings: 
 

-60-

Item #: 5.B. 718 Capitola Avenue staff report.pdf



PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA REPORT:  February 7, 2013     718 Capitola Avenue  
 

 

 

CONDITIONS 
 
1.  The project consists of an amendment to a previously approved take-out restaurant at 718 

Capitola Avenue, including changing the use from a “take-out restaurant” to a standard 
“restaurant”, thereby eliminating the six seat limitation, as well as expanding the outdoor 
seating area.   

 
2.  Any significant modifications to the size or exterior appearance of the structure must be 

approved by the Planning Commission.  Similarly, any significant change to the use itself, or 
the site, must be approved by the Planning Commission. 

 
3.  All landscaping must be maintained, and non-maintenance will be a basis for review by the 

Planning Commission. 
 
4.  The application shall be reviewed by the Planning Commission upon evidence of non-

compliance with conditions of approval or applicable municipal code provisions. 
 
Previous Conditions from Applications #10-057 and #11-029: 
 
5.  The restaurant shall be permitted to sell beer and wine on the premises 
 
6.  Business hours will be limited to 9:00AM – 9:00PM. 

 
7.  There shall be no more than six seats provided. 
  
FINDINGS 
 
A.  The application, subject to the conditions imposed, will secure the purposes of 

the Zoning Ordinance and General Plan. 
 

 Planning Staff and the Planning Commission have reviewed the project and determined 
that the proposed business is an allowable use in the AR/CN (Automatic 
Review/Neighborhood Commercial) Zoning District with a Conditional Use Permit.  
Conditions of approval have been included to carry out the objectives of the Zoning 
Ordinance, General Plan and Local Coastal Plan. 
 

B.  The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood.   
 

 Planning Department Staff and the Planning Commission have reviewed the project and 
determined that the proposed business will provide a much-needed service to Capitola 
and will not have a negative impact on the character and integrity of the neighborhood.  
Conditions of approval have been included to ensure that the project maintains the 
character and integrity of the area. 

 
C.  This project is categorically exempt under Section 15303 of the California 

Environmental Quality Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations. 

 
The proposed project involves minor improvements to an existing commercial space.  
No adverse environmental impacts were discovered during project review by either the 
Planning Department Staff or the Planning Commission. 

-61-

Item #: 5.B. 718 Capitola Avenue staff report.pdf



PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA REPORT:  February 7, 2013     718 Capitola Avenue  
 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS 

A.  Project Plans 
B.  Photo example of proposed palapa structure 
C.  Photo examples of proposed landscaping 
D.  Photos of existing seating area 

 
 
Report Prepared By:  Ryan Bane 
    Senior Planner                   
     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P:\Planning Commission\2013 Meeting Packets\2-7-13\Word\718 Capitola Ave taqueria amend CUP 2-7-13 PC.docx 

-62-

Item #: 5.B. 718 Capitola Avenue staff report.pdf



-63-

Item #: 5.B. Attachment_A.pdf



-64-

Item #: 5.B. Attachment_A.pdf



-65-

Item #: 5.B. Attachment_B.pdf



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-66-



-67-

Item #: 5.B. Attachment_C.pdf



-68-

Item #: 5.B. Attachment_C.pdf



-69-

Item #: 5.B. Attachment_C.pdf



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-70-



-71-

Item #: 5.B. Attachment_D.pdf



-72-

Item #: 5.B. Attachment_D.pdf



 
 

S T A F F   R E P O R T 
 

TO:  PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
FROM:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  DEPARTMENT 
 
DATE:  FEBRUARY 7, 2013 
 
SUBJECT:  504 BEULAH DRIVE #13-040      APN:  036-224-03 

Coastal Permit, Architectural and Site Review and a Conditional Use Permit for 
approval to relocate a mobile home unit in the MHE (Mobile Home Exclusive) 
Zoning District and remodel the mobile home to be used as an office/storage 
space.  This project requires a Coastal Permit which is not appealable to the 
California Coastal Commission.  
Environmental Determination:  Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner:  City of Capitola 

 
APPLICANT’S PROPOSAL 
 
In November of 2012 the city received a complaint regarding a portable barbeque being located 
in the parking lot at Brown Ranch Marketplace.  His main concern was regarding the barbeque 
being a possible tripping hazard to pedestrians walking through the parking lot.  The property 
management was contacted by the Community Development Department, and they followed up 
with an application to gain approvals for the outdoor barbeque as part of the Crown Café Deli & 
Catering business. 
  
In 2009 the Planning Commission and the City Council approved an application to demolish a 
single family residence and construct a 960 square foot prefabricated office building at 504 
Beulah Drive, a site adjacent to City Hall.  After the project was approved the City completed the 
demolition of the single family residence and removed the large Cypress tree but because of 
financial concerns never installed the approved prefab building.  Since that time the Pacific 
Cove Mobile Home Park closed. As part of the park closure the City purchase some of the 
coaches from the residents.  The coaches purchased included a fairly new modular home 
located in space #57 The City is now proposing to move the coach from space #57 to the same 
location previously approved for a modular building.   
 
Once installed the coach would be remodel both inside and out.  The outside treatment as 
shown on the plans will include a new front trellis and ADA accessible entry as well as additional 
landscaping.    
 
The uses in the building will be for Code Enforcement, Information Systems Specialist, Parking 
Meter Management and Police storage.  Five parking spaces will be allocated for parking for 
this building from the temporary parking lot.     
 
The office will be used in conjunction with other City Hall facilities and is consistent with the 
General Plan, Zoning Ordinance and Local Coastal Plan.  This project will allow the “community 

-73-

Item #: 5.C. 504 Beulah Drive staff report.pdf



PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA REPORT:  February 7, 2013     504 Beulah Drive  
 

 

 

room” which is currently be used for these activities to again be used for City functions and 
meetings.   
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The subject site is located in the MHE (Mobile Home Exclusive) zoning district.  The proposed 
public facility use is permitted in the MHE zone with the issuance of a conditional use permit. 
While public facilities should generally be restricted to the PF (Public Facilities) zoning district 
(Section 17.81.050(B)), the MHE zoning specifically lists public facility uses as a conditional 
use.  In this case, the site has been used as a public facility for many years with minimal 
interruption to the surrounding residents, and the proximity of the site to City Hall makes it an 
appropriate extension of the City Hall facilities.  
 
The site will be graded in order to accommodate the new 24’x54’ building, including a ramp 
along the front to provide ADA access.  The building will be approximately 13’ in height with 
vertical grooved plywood siding and a composition shingle roof.  The main entrance will be 
defined by a covered entry porch facing the City Hall building to maintain architectural 
compatibility with the surrounding neighborhood. Per the parking ordinance (1 space/240 
square feet), five spaces are required for the 1,296 square foot building.  All existing trees on 
this site will be maintained.   
 
The City Manager has met with the one neighboring resident and she expressed no objections 
to the proposed plan.   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission approve application #13-040 based on the 
following Conditions and Findings for Approval. 
 
CONDITIONS 
 
1.  Any significant modifications to the size or exterior appearance of the approved design must 

be approved by the Planning Commission.  Similarly, any significant change to the use itself, 
or the site, must be approved by the Planning Commission.  

 
2.  The application shall be reviewed by the Planning Commission upon evidence of non-

compliance with conditions of approval or applicable municipal code provisions 
 

3.  Air-conditioning equipment shall comply with the allowable city permitted decibel levels. 
 

4.  All lighting shall be shielded and directed away from adjacent residential properties. 
 

5.  The final landscape plan submitted with the building permit application shall include the 
specific number of plants of each type and their size, as well as the irrigation system to be 
utilized. 

 
6.  The trees within the construction area shall have protective fencing during construction. 

 
  
  

-74-

Item #: 5.C. 504 Beulah Drive staff report.pdf



PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA REPORT:  February 7, 2013     504 Beulah Drive  
 

 

 

FINDINGS 
 
 
A.  The application, subject to the conditions imposed, will secure the purposes of 

the Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan. 
 

Community Development Department Staff, the Architectural and Site Review 
Committee, and the Planning Commission have all reviewed the project.  The project 
conforms to the development standards of the MHE (Mobile Home Exclusive) Zoning 
District and is permissible with the issuance of a Conditional Use Permit, carrying out the 
objectives of the Zoning Ordinance, General Plan and Local Coastal Plan. 
 

B.  The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood. 
 

Community Development Department Staff and the Planning Commission have all 
reviewed the project.  The site has been used Conditions of approval have been 
included to ensure that the project maintains the character and integrity of the 
neighborhood. 

 
C. This project is categorically exempt under Section 15303 of the California 

Environmental Quality Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations. 

 
 Section 15303 of the CEQA Guidelines exempts the construction and location of small 

facilities or structures less than 2,500 square feet.  This project involves the construction 
of a 960 square foot prefabricated office building.  No adverse environmental impacts 
were discovered during review of the proposed project 

 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

A.  Project Plans 
B.  Coastal Findings 

 
 
Report Prepared By:  Susan Westman 
    General Plan Coordinator 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P:\Planning Commission\2013 Meeting Packets\1-17-13\Word docs\Clares St 3555 Crown Cafe Deli CUP staff report.docx 

-75-

Item #: 5.C. 504 Beulah Drive staff report.pdf



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-76-



-77-

Item #: 5.C. Attachment_A.pdf



-78-

Item #: 5.C. Attachment_A.pdf



-79-

Item #: 5.C. Attachment_A.pdf



-80-

Item #: 5.C. Attachment_A.pdf



-81-

Item #: 5.C. Attachment_A.pdf



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-82-



COASTAL PERMIT FINDINGS 

504 BEULAH DRIVE 

#13-004 

 

COASTAL FINDINGS 
 

D. Findings Required. A coastal permit shall be granted only upon adoption of specific 
written factual findings supporting the conclusion that the proposed development 
conforms to the certified Local Coastal Program, including, but not limited to: 
 

• The proposed development conforms to the City’s certified Local Coastal Plan (LCP). 
The specific, factual findings, as per CMC Section 17.46.090 (D) are as follows:  

 
(D) (2) Require Project-Specific Findings. In determining any requirement for public 
access, including the type of access and character of use, the city shall evaluate and 
document in written findings the factors identified in subsections (D) (2) (a) through (e), 
to the extent applicable. The findings shall explain the basis for the conclusions and 
decisions of the city and shall be supported by substantial evidence in the record. If an 
access dedication is required as a condition of approval, the findings shall explain how 
the adverse effects which have been identified will be alleviated or mitigated by the 
dedication. As used in this section, “cumulative effect” means the effect of the 
individual project in combination with the effects of past projects, other current 
projects, and probable future projects, including development allowed under applicable 
planning and zoning. 

 
(D) (2) (a) Project Effects on Demand for Access and Recreation. Identification of 
existing and open public access and coastal recreation areas and facilities in the 
regional and local vicinity of the development. Analysis of the project’s effects upon 
existing public access and recreation opportunities. Analysis of the project’s 
cumulative effects upon the use and capacity of the identified access and recreation 
opportunities, including public tidelands and beach resources, and upon the capacity 
of major coastal roads from subdivision, intensification or cumulative build-out. 
Projection for the anticipated demand and need for increased coastal access and 
recreation opportunities for the public. Analysis of the contribution of the project’s 
cumulative effects to any such projected increase. Description of the physical 
characteristics of the site and its proximity to the sea, tideland viewing points, upland 
recreation areas, and trail linkages to tidelands or recreation areas. Analysis of the 
importance and potential of the site, because of its location or other characteristics, for 
creating, preserving or enhancing public access to tidelands or public recreation 
opportunities;  
 
• The project will not directly affect public access and coastal recreation areas as it is 

located inland within a developed area.  
 

(D) (2) (b) Shoreline Processes. Description of the existing shoreline conditions, 
including beach profile, accessibility and usability of the beach, history of erosion or 
accretion, character and sources of sand, wave and sand movement, presence of 
shoreline protective structures, location of the line of mean high tide during the season 
when the beach is at its narrowest (generally during the late winter) and the proximity of 
that line to existing structures, and any other factors which substantially characterize 
or affect the shoreline processes at the site. Identification of anticipated changes to 
shoreline processes at the site. 
Identification of anticipated changes to shoreline processes and beach profile unrelated 
to the proposed development. Description and analysis of any reasonably likely 

-83-

Item #: 5.C. Attachment_B.pdf



Coastal Findings 
504 Beulah Drive #13-004 
Page 2 

 

changes, attributable to the primary and cumulative effects of the project, to: wave and 
sand movement affecting beaches in the vicinity of the project; the profile of the beach; 
the character, extent, accessibility and usability of the beach; and any other factors 
which characterize or affect beaches in the vicinity. Analysis of the effect of any 
identified changes of the project, alone or in combination with other anticipated 
changes, will have upon the ability of the public to use public tidelands and shoreline 
recreation areas; 
 

• No portion of the project is located along the shoreline or beach. 
 

(D) (2) (c) Historic Public Use. Evidence of use of the site by members of the general 
public for a continuous five-year period (such use may be seasonal). Evidence of the 
type and character of use made by the public (vertical, lateral, blufftop, etc., and for 
passive and/or active recreational use, etc.). Identification of any agency (or person) 
who has maintained and/or improved the area subject to historic public use and the 
nature of the maintenance performed and improvements made. Identification of the 
record owner of the area historically used by the public and any attempts by the owner 
to prohibit public use of the area, including the success or failure of those attempts. 
Description of the potential for adverse impact on public use of the area from the 
proposed development (including but not limited to, creation of physical or 
psychological impediments to public use);  
 

• The publicly owned site was historically used as a single-family house and in recent 
years as a public facility. There is no evidence of use of the site by members of the 
public for coastal access as the property is located inland within an already developed 
area. 

(D)  (2) (d) Physical Obstructions. Description of any physical aspects of the 
development which block or impede the ability of the public to get to or along the 
tidelands, public recreation areas, or other public coastal resources or to see the 
shoreline; 

• The project is located inland and therefore will not block or impede the ability of the 
public to get to or along the tidelands, public recreation areas, or other public coastal 
resources or to see the shoreline. 

 
 (D) (2) (e) Other Adverse Impacts on Access and Recreation. Description of the 
development’s physical proximity and relationship to the shoreline and any public 
recreation area. Analysis of the extent of which buildings, walls, signs, streets or other 
aspects of the development, individually or cumulatively, are likely to diminish the 
public’s use of tidelands or lands committed to public recreation. Description of any 
alteration of the aesthetic, visual or recreational value of public use areas, and of any 
diminution of the quality or amount of recreational use of public lands which may be 
attributable to the individual or cumulative effects of the development.  
 

• The project is located inland and therefore will not diminish the public’s use of tidelands 
or lands committed to public recreation nor alter the aesthetic, visual or recreational 
value of public use areas. 
 

-84-

Item #: 5.C. Attachment_B.pdf



Coastal Findings 
504 Beulah Drive #13-004 
Page 3 

 

 (D) (3) (a – c) Required Findings for Public Access Exceptions. Any determination that 
one of the exceptions of subsection (F) (2) applies to a development shall be supported 
by written findings of fact, analysis and conclusions which address all of the following: 

a. The type of access potentially applicable to the site involved (vertical, lateral, 
bluff top, etc.) and its location in relation to the fragile coastal resource to be protected, 
the agricultural use, the public safety concern, or the military facility which is the basis 
for the exception, as applicable; 

b. Unavailability of any mitigating measures to manage the type, character, 
intensity, hours, season or location of such use so that agricultural resources, fragile 
coastal resources, public safety, or military security, as applicable, are protected; 

c. Ability of the public, through another reasonable means, to reach the same area 
of public tidelands as would be made accessible by an access way on the subject land. 

• The project is not requesting a Public Access Exception, therefore these findings do 
not apply 

(D) (4) (a – f) Findings for Management Plan Conditions. Written findings in support of a 
condition requiring a management plan for regulating the time and manner or character 
of public access use must address the following factors, as applicable: 

a. Identification and protection of specific habitat values including the reasons 
supporting the conclusions that such values must be protected by limiting the hours, 
seasons, or character of public use; 

 b. Topographic constraints of the development site; 

 c. Recreational needs of the public; 

 d. Rights of privacy of the landowner which could not be mitigated by setting the 
project back from the access way or otherwise conditioning the development; 

e. The requirements of the possible accepting agency, if an offer of dedication is 
the mechanism for securing public access; 

f. Feasibility of adequate setbacks, fencing, landscaping, and other methods as 
part of a management plan to regulate public use. 

• No Management Plan is required; therefore these findings do not apply 
 

(D) (5)  Project complies with public access requirements, including submittal of 
appropriate legal documents to ensure the right of public access whenever, and as, 
required by the certified land use plan and Section 17.46.010 (coastal access 
requirements); 
 

• No legal documents to ensure public access rights  are required for the proposed 
project 

  

-85-

Item #: 5.C. Attachment_B.pdf



Coastal Findings 
504 Beulah Drive #13-004 
Page 4 

 

(D) (6) Project complies with visitor-serving and recreational use policies;  
 

• Does not apply. 
 

(D) (7)  Project complies with applicable standards and requirements for provision of 
public and private parking, pedestrian access, alternate means of transportation and/or 
traffic improvements; 
 

• The project meets zoning standards for required parking and pedestrian access. 
 

(D) (8)  Review of project design, site plan, signing, lighting, landscaping, etc., by the 
city’s architectural and site review committee, and compliance with adopted design 
guidelines and standards, and review committee recommendations; 
 

• The project was reviewed by the Planning Commission and complies with 
recommendations provided by the Commission.   

  
(D) (9) Project complies with LCP policies regarding protection of public landmarks, 
protection or provision of public views; and shall not block or detract from public views 
to and along Capitola’s shoreline; 

 

• No public landmarks or public views to and along the shoreline are affected by the project.  
 
(D) (10) Demonstrated availability and adequacy of water and sewer services; 
 

• The project is being located on a lot that previously had a single family residence with 
existing water and sewer services. 

 
(D) (11) Provisions of minimum water flow rates and fire response times;  
 

• The project is replacing an existing single-family house, therefore this finding does not 
apply. 

 
(D) (12) Project complies with water and energy conservation standards; 
 

• The project will be required to comply with water and energy conservation standards as 
part of the building plan check process. 
 
(D) (13) Provision of park dedication, school impact, and other fees as may be required;  
 
• The project will be required to pay appropriate fees prior to building permit issuance. 
 
(D) (14) Project complies with coastal housing policies, and applicable ordinances 
including condominium conversion and mobile home ordinances; 

 

• The project is a public facility office use, therefore this finding does not apply. 
 
(D) (15) Project complies with natural resource, habitat, and archaeological protection 
policies;  
 

-86-

Item #: 5.C. Attachment_B.pdf



Coastal Findings 
504 Beulah Drive #13-004 
Page 5 

 

• The project is not located in an environmentally sensitive habitat zone nor within an 
archaeological sensitive zone, therefore this policy does not apply. 
 
(D) (16) Project complies with Monarch butterfly habitat protection policies; 

 

• The project is outside of any identified sensitive habitats, specifically areas where Monarch 
Butterflies have been encountered, identified and documented. 
 

(D) (17) Project provides drainage and erosion and control measures to protect marine, 
stream, and wetland water quality from urban runoff and erosion; 
 

• The project will comply with all applicable erosion control measures. 
 
(D) (18) Geologic/engineering reports have been prepared by qualified professional for 
projects in seismic areas, geologically unstable areas, or coastal bluffs, and project 
complies with hazard protection policies including provision of appropriate setbacks 
and mitigation measures; 
 

• The project is not located within a geologically unstable area or on a coastal bluff. 
 
(D) (19) All other geological, flood and fire hazards are accounted for and mitigated in 
the project design; 
 

• The project is not located within a geologically unstable area nor flood plain, and fire 
hazard are accounted for and will be mitigated in the project design. 

   
(D) (20) Project complies with shoreline structure policies; 
  

• The proposed development is not located on the shoreline and therefore does not require 
compliance with shoreline structure policies. 

 
(D) (21) The uses proposed are consistent with the permitted or conditional uses of the 
zoning district in which the project is located; 
 

• The public facility use is a conditional use within the Mobile Home Exclusive zoning district.  
 
(D) (22) Conformance to requirements of all other city ordinances, zoning requirements, 
and project review procedures; 
 

• The project conforms to the requirements of all city ordinances, zoning requirements and 
project development review and development procedures. 

 
(D) (23) Project complies with the Capitola parking permit program as follows:  
 

• The project site is not located within the area of the Capitola parking permit program. 

 
 

-87-

Item #: 5.C. Attachment_B.pdf



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-88-


	AGENDA
	1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	2. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS
	A. Additions and Deletions to Agenda
	B. Public Comments
	C. Commission Comments
	D. Staff Comments

	3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	A. January 17, 2013 Regular Planning Commission Meeting
	[1-17-13 DRAFT Minutes.pdf]


	4. CONSENT CALENDAR
	A. 4570 GARNET STREET # 13-006 APN: 034-034-04
	[4570 Garnet staff report.pdf]
	[Attachment_A.pdf]
	[Attachment_B.pdf]
	Design Permit to remodel an existing two-story single-family house, including the addition of a new second-floor deck in the R-1 (Single-Family Residence) Zoning District.Environmental Determination: Categorical ExemptionOwner: Mark Holguin, filed: 1/10/13Applicant: Bryan Martin 


	5. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
	A. 1855 41st AVENUE #13-012 APN: 034-261-37 
	[1855 41st Avenue staff report.pdf]
	[Attachment_A.pdf]
	[Attachment_B.pdf]
	[Attachment_C.pdf]
	[Attachment_D.pdf]
	Design Permit to construct a new exterior entry and façade, including a sign permit for a new wall sign, as part of an existing retail space at the Capitola Mall in the CC (Community Commercial) Zoning District.Environmental Determination: Categorical ExemptionProperty Owner: Macerich Partnership, filed 1/18/13Representative: Macerich Partnership 

	B. 718 CAPITOLA AVENUE #12-160 APN: 036-062-11
	[718 Capitola Avenue staff report.pdf]
	[Attachment_A.pdf]
	[Attachment_B.pdf]
	[Attachment_C.pdf]
	[Attachment_D.pdf]
	Design Permit and amendment to a Conditional Use Permit to allow for additional outdoor seating for an approved restaurant in the AR/CN (Automatic Review/Neighborhood Commercial) Zoning District.Environmental Determination: Categorical ExemptionProperty Owner: Bruce CanepaRepresentative: Manuel Monjaraz, filed 3/22/11 

	C. 504 BEULAH DRIVE #13-004 APN: 035-141-33
	[504 Beulah Drive staff report.pdf]
	[Attachment_A.pdf]
	[Attachment_B.pdf]
	Coastal Development Permit, Architectural and Site Review and a Conditional Use Permit for locating a modular building (mobile home) in the MHE (Mobile Home Exclusive) Zoning District to be used for police storage and the code enforcement office.This project requires a Coastal Permit which is not appealable to the California Coastal Commission.Environmental Determination: Categorical ExemptionOwner: City of Capitola, filed: 1/7/13Representative: Frank Phanton 


	6. DIRECTOR'S REPORT
	7. COMMISSION COMMUNICATIONS
	8. ADJOURNMENT

